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Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Final Request for Proposals Posted 8/21/12

October 5, 2012
486.  The following question was received in reference to previously posted Question No. 316 which reads as follows:  

316.  Question:  Would the Government place the following documents in the Technical Library?  

1.
Current Facilities Management Plan for Real Property  

Answer:  There is no Facilities Management Plan for Real Property.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

2.
Current Emergency Service Operations Plan  

Answer:  Revision:  There is no current Emergency Service Operations Plan because this a brand new requirement for WICC II; however, an Emergency Operations Plan which establishes procedures and responsibilities to prepare for and mitigate, respond to and recover from major emergencies and to minimize the loss of life, equipment, facilities, and operational capability caused by natural or technological disasters occurring at Wallops Flight Facility (WFF) has been uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
3.
Current Aircraft Mishap Response Plan 

Answer:  Revision:  This plan contains sensitive but unclassified information which has been redacted.*  The redacted plan has been uploaded to the technical library.

4.
Written listing of equipment, outside of GSE, that is needed to operate the health unit.   

Answer:  It is up to the Contractor to determine what equipment, beyond the IAGP that is listed in Attachment J-3, is needed to meet the requirements of the SOW.  Required equipment will depend on the Contractor’s technical approach.

5.
Current Triage Plan for the health unit 

Answer:  The WFF health unit complies with the Tidewater EMS Council Inc. 

Prehospital and Interhospital Regional Trauma Plan which can be found at http://www.tidewaterems.org.

6.
Written Standard Operating Plan for the health unit 

 Answer:  There was no contract requirement for a written Standard Operating Plan (SOP) for the health unit in the WICC I contract.  Therefore, any SOP that does exist is for the internal use of the existing contractor only.   

7.
Vehicle Preventive Maintenance Plan for all NASA Vehicles 

Answer:  There is no Vehicle Preventive Maintenance Plan for all NASA Vehicles.

8.
NASA Annual Work Plan for Core and IDIQ Work  

Answer:  The core and potential return on investment IDIQ project list from the NASA Annual Work Plan has been uploaded to the technical library.

9.
Navy Core Annual Work Plan 

Answer:  There is no current Navy Core Annual Work Plan.

10.
Energy and Water Management Plan 

Answer:  There is no Energy and Water Management Plan.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

11.
Quarterly Report on Customer (Patient) feedback  

Answer:  There is no Quarterly Report on Customer (Patient) feedback.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

12.
A copy of the PIV Monthly Report for March 2012 

Answer:  Revision:  This contains confidential company proprietary information that will not be released.*

13.
Current Space Utilization Plan Document   

Answer:  The current Space Utilization Plan document is available for reviewing in the COs office upon request.*  Revision:  The plan contains building floor plans that are considered sensitive.

14.
 Site Map with all buildings identified and labeled 

Answer:  This is considered sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*

15.  Current service contracts on the existing WICC (i.e., maintenance service contracts, etc.)  

Answer:  We are unable to provide current service contracts on the current WICC.  See answer to Question 161.

16.
Wallops Master Plan 

Answer:  The Wallops Master Plan has been added to the technical library.

17.
WFF Environmental Resource Document (ERD)

Answer:  Revision:  The current Environmental Resources Document contains sensitive but unclassified information which has been redacted.*  The redacted document has been uploaded to the technical library. 

18.
WFF regulatory permits; specifically the emissions parameters or plans that may be required by regulatory agencies   

Answer:  The air emissions permits for the WFF Main Base and Island have been added to the technical library.  The permit for the operation of the waste water treatment facility has also been added to the technical library.  The permit for the operation of the potable water system is considered sensitive but unclassified and will not be made available.

19.
WFF Environmental Management System’s current environmental Significant Aspects and Impacts and Targets and Objectives   

Answer:  This has been added to the technical library. 

*Successful offeror will have access to this information.

New Question 486:  

Question:  All the above, which is not “made available” bolsters the competitive advantage of the incumbent – is that the intent of the Govt?

 Answer:  We have reviewed the list of documents above and we have posted redacted versions of certain documents in the technical library.  The answer to Question 316 is hereby revised accordingly.   

605.  SOW 3.1 Work load data for Preventive Maintenance Work Orders is identified in J-2, paragraph 3.1. However there is no reference in Statement of Work 3 for preventive maintenance work orders. 

a. Question: Are these PM work orders for repairs on equipment above and beyond the schedule preventive maintenance?

    Answer: No, the “Preventative Maintenance” work orders referenced in Section 3.1 of Appendix J-2 are for scheduled preventative maintenance not repairs. Repair work orders are listed as “Repairs”. 


b. Question: If so, what is the limit of liability for these preventive maintenance work orders?

    Answer:  See answer to Question a. above.

606.  Technical Library - Equipment List - In the Equipment List in the Technical Library, there is equipment listed that have a “not used” in the description column. For example, there are 29 Air Handlers that have this term in the description.

Question: Does equipment identified as “not used” require maintenance?


Answer:  The equipment requiring maintenance is listed in RFP, Attachment J-2, Appendix to the SOW.   The equipment list posted to the technical library is for information purposes only.

607.  Technical Library - Mission Critical Facilities and SOW 3.7.2 - The Mission Critical Facilities List in the Technical Library identifies two mission critical facilities: D-008: Central Heating Plant and M-022A: Heating Plant Building. These descriptions do not correspond with the SOW 3.7.2 requirement that describes stand-alone heating plants.

Question:  Do these two centralized heating plants that are listed in the mission critical facilities list require 24/7 operations?

Answer:  No. The Mission Critical Facilities list provided in the technical library is for information purposes only.  D-008 is no longer a central heating plant.  The central heating plant in D-008 was recently replaced by stand-alone heating plants.  Building M-022A is a building whose purpose is to house a stand-alone heating plant. 

608.  Technical Library - Mission Critical Facilities and SOW 3.7.3 - The Mission Critical Facilities List in the Technical Library identifies two water wells: I-0164, Water Well No. 3 (Mainland) and I-0165, Water Well No. 4 (Mainland). However, SOW 3.7.3 does not identify a water plant to be operated.

Question: Are there any water treatment plants at WFF, and if so, do they require 24/7 operations?
Answer:  Please read Attachment J-1 SOW Section 3.7.3 and Attachment J-2, Appendix to the SOW, Sections 3.2.1 and 3.7.3.  There are 2 water treatment plants.  They are considered part of the distribution systems.  They require 24/7 operations. 
609.  SOW 3.5.4A, Elevators - The SOW describes the preventive maintenance and testing of all elevators at WFF to be performed per requirements of CMMS.  


Question: What are the requirements in the CMMS?


  Answer:  The requirements listed in the CMMS are for the certification schedule.  All elevators must be certified annually.  See answer to Question 550.  Please note that there are other requirements written in the SOW beyond those in the CMMS. Please read Attachment J-1 SOW Section 3.5.4.
612.  A notice has been posted that administrative and resources support services for the Management Education Center (MEC) at WFF are being incorporated into the WICC contract.  
          Question:  Assuming these services will be part of the WICC II contract, when will these known requirements be incorporated into the RFP?  Will this impact the proposal due date?
            Answer:  SOW Section 14.6 Administrative and Resources Support (IDIQ) had been revised prior to final RFP release to include additional administrative IDIQ support.   The type of IDIQ support encompasses work similar to the current NASA HQ provided MEC support contract.  The proposal due date of October 23, 2012 remains the same.

613. Reference Section 9.15 – 

Question:  How many people, defined in the Section as “NASA civil servant employees and their families,” are served by the NASA WFF Employee Assistance Program?  
 Answer:  NASA WFF has approximately 260 civil servants.  The Employee Assistance Program is a confidential, diagnostic and educational program providing assessment, short-term counseling and referral services free of charge for NASA civil servant employees and their families. Since this is a confidential program, we do not have information on the number of family members that have received or would require services.  However, based on historical data we estimate 12 patients/yr. +/- 6/yr.  Offerors are reminded to use information provided in Attachment J-2, Appendix to the SOW for quantities.   

614.  Reference Section B.4 – when completing this Section, do we use Total Contract or Base Year for the values?

           Answer:  Clause B.4 is for the Base Period only.  Option periods are included under Clause B.9.

615. Reference: SOW 3.0, paragraph 3.7 Utilities

        Question:  In order for Offerors to accurately price costs for water treatment, please provide the historical chemical usages and types of chemicals for water treatment plant, waste water plant, boilers, chillers, cooling towers, condensate systems.
          Answer:   A breakdown of historical chemical usages, types of chemicals for the water treatment plan, boilers, chillers cooling towers, condensate systems is not available.  A list of ODCs for the past five contract years has been uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.   
616.  Reference: Government answer to questions 519 and 604
         Question:  Based on the Government’s answer to the referenced questions, when will repair be considered Davis Bacon work?

             Answer:  The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts, apply to contractors and subcontractors performing on federally funded or assisted contracts in excess of $2,000 for the construction, alteration, or repair (including painting and decorating) of public buildings or public works.  However, any work under WICC II that is subject to a Collective Bargaining Agreement would not be subject to the Davis Bacon Act.  
